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 1        BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and
  

 2   numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the
  

 3   Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting
  

 4   Committee, commencing at 11:13 a.m. on November 24, 2025,
  

 5   with all participants appearing via videoconference.
  

 6
  

 7   BEFORE:  Adam Stafford, Chairman
  

 8
  

 9   APPEARANCES:
  

10   For the Applicant:
  

11       Jason Moyes
       Moyes Sellers & Hendricks LTD.

12       1850 North Central Avenue
       Suite 1100

13       Phoenix, Arizona  85004
  

14   ALSO PRESENT:
  

15       Kenda Pollio, KP Environmental, Inc.
       Sarah Justus, KP Environmental, Inc.

16       Erin Kvist, Moyes Sellers & Hendricks LTD.
       Tony Burley, Baccara Power, LLC

17       April Butler, member of the public
       Elizabeth Mortensen, member of the public

18       Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairman Stafford
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 1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Let's go on the record.
  

 2                 Now is the time set for the prehearing
  

 3   conference on the application of Baccara Power, LLC, for
  

 4   a Certificate of Environmental Compatibility, Docket No.
  

 5   L-21369A-25-0222-00253, Line Siting Case 253.
  

 6                 Let's start with appearances of the
  

 7   parties.
  

 8                 Mr. Moyes.
  

 9                 MR. MOYES:  Good morning, Mr. Chairman.
  

10   Jason Moyes with the law firm of Moyes Sellers &
  

11   Hendricks on behalf of the applicant Baccara Power, LLC.
  

12   With me from my office is my paralegal Ms. Erin Kvist.
  

13   Unable to join us today is Ms. Julie Larson who will be
  

14   attending the hearing from my office.  We also have from
  

15   KP Environmental Ms. Kenda Pollio and Ms. Sarah Justus.
  

16   And then from the applicant Tony Burley.
  

17                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Thank you.  All right.
  

18   Just to confirm, you've got the lodging arrangements for
  

19   the committee members from out of town?
  

20                 MR. MOYES:  Yes, that's correct.  We are
  

21   confirming with Tod which members are going to be
  

22   attending virtually and who else has not made the room
  

23   reservations, but we haven't got that final report yet.
  

24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And you've got the
  

25   rooms for the court reporter and myself already; correct?
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 1                 MR. MOYES:  Correct.
  

 2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  I have not seen any
  

 3   requests to intervene in this matter.
  

 4                 MR. MOYES:  That's correct.
  

 5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Or any limited appearance
  

 6   statements either?
  

 7                 MR. MOYES:  Also correct.
  

 8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Do you agree that
  

 9   April 15, 2026, is the time for the committee to act
  

10   under the statute?
  

11                 MR. MOYES:  Yes.
  

12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And the committee -- and
  

13   the applicant has complied with the notice to affected
  

14   jurisdictions as required by the statute and procedural
  

15   order?
  

16                 MR. MOYES:  We have.
  

17                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And those are Maricopa
  

18   County --
  

19                 MR. MOYES:  Yes.  Technically, the only
  

20   jurisdiction over the site at this time is Maricopa
  

21   County.  There is some debate at this time whether this
  

22   site will be annexed at a future date into the City of
  

23   Glendale.  They have also been noticed.
  

24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And I think on your
  

25   list you had the City of Surprise listed also.
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 1                 MR. MOYES:  We also sent notice to the City
  

 2   of Surprise because many of the residents who were
  

 3   commenting were located in Surprise, so we wanted to make
  

 4   sure their elected officials were aware.
  

 5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.
  

 6                 MR. MOYES:  In addition, we need a military
  

 7   compatibility permit from Luke Air Force Base.  That's in
  

 8   conjunction with Maricopa County, so we also sent notice
  

 9   to the base.
  

10                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And then the
  

11   applicant has complied with the posting and publishing
  

12   requirements from the procedural order and the statutes?
  

13                 MR. MOYES:  We have.
  

14                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And what were the
  

15   publication dates, and what was the paper?
  

16                 MR. MOYES:  The Arizona Republic on
  

17   October 29 and October 30.
  

18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  I assume you've had a
  

19   chance to review the agenda?
  

20                 MR. MOYES:  We have.
  

21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Are there any objections or
  

22   additions to it?
  

23                 MR. MOYES:  No, Mr. Chairman.
  

24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  So we have the hearing set
  

25   to commence on December 1st at one p.m. at the Hilton
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 1   Phoenix Resort At The Peak?
  

 2                 MR. MOYES:  Yes.
  

 3                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And how many days do you
  

 4   anticipate the hearing to last?
  

 5                 MR. MOYES:  We're scheduled to go through
  

 6   the end of the week, December 5.  I expect we'll use all
  

 7   five days.
  

 8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And I assume you
  

 9   have made arrangements with Peaks Audio for the A/V needs
  

10   for the hearing?
  

11                 MR. MOYES:  As always, yes.
  

12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And you'll have
  

13   sign-in forms for public comment with --
  

14                 MR. MOYES:  Correct.
  

15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  -- the check box to speak
  

16   option?
  

17                 MR. MOYES:  Absolutely.
  

18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Do you anticipate
  

19   need for security at the hearing?
  

20                 MR. MOYES:  We do and have already made
  

21   arrangements.
  

22                 CHMN STAFFORD:  We'll do the public comment
  

23   session that's scheduled for 5:30 p.m. on December 1st.
  

24   I guess we'll see what the attendance is like if we're
  

25   going to have to do any more than that, but certainly
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 1   we'll plan on the 5:30 on the initial day.
  

 2                 I see you filed your exhibits in the
  

 3   docket?
  

 4                 MR. MOYES:  Yes.
  

 5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  You have the proposed tour.
  

 6   You have the witness summaries.  You have the public
  

 7   outreach summary.  Do you have all the notice, exhibits
  

 8   showing publication, service on the -- to the affected
  

 9   jurisdictions.
  

10                 Now, for the tour, I've looked at the --
  

11   what's the estimated duration of the tour?
  

12                 MR. MOYES:  We expect that would take the
  

13   better part of the morning on December 2nd, Tuesday
  

14   morning.
  

15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  So about --
  

16                 MR. MOYES:  Probably until lunchtime.
  

17                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  So approximately
  

18   three hours, you think, then?
  

19                 MR. MOYES:  Yes.
  

20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  There's adequate Wi-Fi at
  

21   the facility for the hearing; correct?
  

22                 MR. MOYES:  Yes.
  

23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  So we'll break every
  

24   90 minutes during the hearing.
  

25                 The attire for the hearing will be business
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 1   casual.
  

 2                 Are there any other issues regarding the
  

 3   hearing itself?
  

 4                 MR. MOYES:  No.
  

 5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Filed your witness
  

 6   summaries.  Exhibits.  There's no parties to exchange
  

 7   them with.
  

 8                 MR. MOYES:  We would ask the Chairman's
  

 9   permission to file one additional late filed exhibit.  We
  

10   normally don't file communications regarding our separate
  

11   land use planning and ancillary matters that are going
  

12   on, but we have seen public-filed comments from the Luke
  

13   Air Force Base.  And so we want to officially docket that
  

14   letter as an exhibit as well as previous letters and
  

15   their related correspondence that show the proper context
  

16   of those communications with Luke.  So we would file
  

17   those today with your permission.
  

18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  How many additional
  

19   exhibits do you plan on filing?
  

20                 MR. MOYES:  It will be one exhibit all
  

21   related to Luke Air Force Base communications.
  

22                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  I see you have eight
  

23   witnesses listed?
  

24                 MR. MOYES:  That's correct.
  

25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And do you plan on
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 1   produce -- calling them in a panel?  Several panels?
  

 2                 MR. MOYES:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  Probably at
  

 3   least two different panels.
  

 4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  At least two different
  

 5   panels?
  

 6                 MR. MOYES:  Yes.
  

 7                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And you've made the
  

 8   financial arrangements with the Commission?
  

 9                 MR. MOYES:  We have.
  

10                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Now, I see in
  

11   your exhibits you've got the data request responses to
  

12   Staff that were issued to you in response to my letter to
  

13   Staff.
  

14                 I do not see the letter from Staff to the
  

15   committee.  Is that -- I anticipate that that'll be filed
  

16   probably today or tomorrow.  Is that your understanding
  

17   as well?
  

18                 MR. MOYES:  We hope so.  That seems to be
  

19   the case in recent line siting cases.
  

20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  That's how the timing
  

21   usually shakes out, so okay.
  

22                 And there's -- is there any related
  

23   litigation to this application?
  

24                 MR. MOYES:  No, Mr. Chairman.
  

25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  We've gotten your
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 1   proposed CEC.  We got it filed in your exhibits, and I've
  

 2   also got the Word version.
  

 3                 What other permits are pending for this
  

 4   project?
  

 5                 MR. MOYES:  The military compatibility
  

 6   permit with the county via Luke Air Force Base.
  

 7                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.
  

 8                 MR. MOYES:  And an air permit, of course,
  

 9   Mr. Chairman.
  

10                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Right.  I see the
  

11   applications -- well, your application of air permits is
  

12   part of your certificate application, but it's still
  

13   pending before the Maricopa County; correct?
  

14                 MR. MOYES:  It is.  And we're expecting a
  

15   draft permit hopefully this week prior to the hearing.
  

16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  There's no NEPA process for
  

17   this?
  

18                 MR. MOYES:  There's not.
  

19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.
  

20                 MR. MOYES:  And the project is already
  

21   zoned for the industrial use under the county.  It's just
  

22   the proximity to the base that requires that
  

23   compatibility permit.
  

24                 So you don't need any kind of special use
  

25   permit or plan amendment?
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 1                 MR. MOYES:  No.
  

 2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  It's already zoned heavy
  

 3   industrial?
  

 4                 MR. MOYES:  Correct.
  

 5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And for the hearing, you'll
  

 6   have the -- on the exhibits, they'll be set up, I'm
  

 7   assuming, on tablets with Peaks?
  

 8                 MR. MOYES:  Yes.
  

 9                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And I've got my hard copy
  

10   exhibits.  We'll need another hard copy for the court
  

11   reporter.
  

12                 Are there any other issues we need to
  

13   cover?
  

14                 MR. MOYES:  Not that I'm aware of,
  

15   Mr. Chairman.
  

16                 Kenda or Sarah, anything I've forgotten?
  

17                 MS. JUSTUS:  No, nothing I can think of.
  

18                 MS. POLLIO:  Good here.
  

19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Is there anything
  

20   else we need -- oh, did you get the application and the
  

21   transcripts to -- I believe there's two public libraries
  

22   listed?
  

23                 MR. MOYES:  Yes.  We actually dropped them
  

24   off at three libraries.
  

25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Great.

      GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC      602.266.6535
      www.glennie-reporting.com             Phoenix, AZ



LS CASE NO. 253      PREHEARING CONFERENCE      11/24/2025 13

  

 1                 MR. MOYES:  The Surprise Regional Library,
  

 2   the Luke Air Force Base library, and then when we learned
  

 3   that the public was having trouble accessing the Luke
  

 4   library, we sent a third copy to the Fairway Library.
  

 5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  That covers
  

 6   everything on my list.
  

 7                 Tod, is there anything else we need to
  

 8   cover?
  

 9                 MR. BREWER:  No, Mr. Chairman.  Thank you.
  

10                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  All right.  Well,
  

11   thank you very much.  Looks like we're all set for the
  

12   hearing to proceed.  I will see you all on Monday,
  

13   December 1st at one o'clock.  Well, I'll be there before
  

14   one o'clock.  But yes.
  

15                 MR. MOYES:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
  

16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Thank you all very
  

17   much.  Have a good Thanksgiving, and I will see you on
  

18   the 1st.
  

19                 MR. MOYES:  Happy Thanksgiving.
  

20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  We are adjourned.
  

21                 (Proceedings concluded at 11:25 a.m.)
  

22
  

23
  

24
  

25
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 1   STATE OF ARIZONA       )
                          )

 2   COUNTY OF MARICOPA     )
  

 3        BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings were
   taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,

 4   true, and accurate record of the proceedings, all done to
   the best of my skill and ability; that the proceedings

 5   were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter reduced
   to print under my direction.

 6
        I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of the

 7   parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the
   outcome hereof.

 8
        I CERTIFY that I have complied with the ethical

 9   obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and
   ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(g)(1) and (2).

10
        Dated at Phoenix, Arizona, November 24, 2025.

11
  

12
  

13
  

14              ___________________________________
                       JENNIFER HONN, RPR

15                   Arizona Certified Reporter
                           No. 50885

16
  

17
  

18        I CERTIFY that GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC, has
   complied with the ethical obligations set forth in

19   ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(g)(1) through (6).
  

20
  

21
  

22
  

23               __________________________________
                GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC

24                    Arizona Registered Firm
                           No. R1035

25
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